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140 West Street z 5 verlzon
6th Floor
New York, NY 10007-2109
Tel (212) 519-4716

Fax (212) 962-1687
keefe.b.clemons@verizon.com

Keefe B. Clemons
General Counsel — Northeast Region

July 6, 2016

By Electronic and Express Mail

Irene K. Asbury, Secretary

New Jersey Board of Public Utilities

44 South Clinton Avenue, 3 Floor, Suite 314
P.O. Box 350

Trenton, NJ 08625-0350

Re: Verified Petition of XO Holdings, XO Communications Services, LL.C, and Verizon
Communications Inc. for Approval of a Proposed Transaction
BPU Docket No. TM106030248

Dear Secretary Asbury,

This letter is submitted on behalf of the Petitioners in response to the letter filed by New Jersey
Division of Rate Counsel (“Rate Counsel™) that was filed in this docket on May 11, 2016. (“Rate
Counsel Letter”). In that letter, Rate Counsel recommended that the Board “condition approval of the
proposed acquisition on assurances from Verizon that [sic] transaction will have no negative impact or
reduction of New Jersey employees for a minimum five year period post transaction or negative impact
on employee pension obligations as triggered under N.J.S.4. 48:3-7.[]" Rate Counsel Letter at 2 (footnote
omitted). Petitioners respectfully submit that in this case conditioning the transaction as suggested by
Rate Counsel would be improper.

First, to the extent Rate Counsel’s proposed five-year condition is based on concerns that the
proposed transaction will have a negative impact on or cause a reduction in any employee XO pension
obligations benefits, no such obligations currently exist for any of XO’s NJ employees (currently, 135).
See Petitioners " Response to Board Staff’s Request S-2. Therefore, the transaction will have no impact
whatsoever on any pension obligations, and accordingly does not raise any issue under N.J.S.4. 48:3-7.

' N.J.5.4. 48:3-7 provides in relevant part that:

Where, by the proposed sale, lease, or other disposition of all or a substantial portion of
its property, any franchise or franchises, privileges. or rights, or any part thereof or
merger or consolidation thereof as set forth herein, it appears that the public utility or a
wholly owned subsidiary thereof may be unable to fulfill its obligation to any employees
(continued . . .)
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XO’s employees currently have and will continue to have access to the same 401K plan, including their
vested interests and prior contributions, immediately after closing, and employees. will eventually be
transferred to Petitioner Verizon's 401K plan, which offers even greater benelits. Petitioners’ Response
to Board Staff’s Request S-2.

As discussed in our responses to Board Staff’s interrogatories (Petitioners’ Response to Board
Staff’s Request §-1}, Verizon does anticipate some merger savings as a result of the transaction, and
should be given the opportunity to assess the needs of the combined entily after the transaction closes in
order to make decisions that maximize efficiency and operational effectiveness. Verizon should not be
required to guarantee that any particular employees will retain their jobs for any finite period of time
following the completion of the transaction. Indeed, doing so would give the XO employees a special
status that other similarly-situated Verizon employees do not enjoy, and would unreasonably constrain
Verizon's ability to achieve some of the synergies that one would reasonably expect as a result of such a
transaction.

Should the Board require some assurance relating to XO's NJ employees, it should adopt the
more reasonabie language approved by the Board in the Charter-Time Warner Merger (Docket Nos,
CM 13070770, TM15070772), rather than the 5-year retention obligation proposed by Rate Counsel, and
require for a limited peried of tirne that Verizon notify the Board and provide an explanation il there is a
net loss of XO customer-facing jobs in New Jersey that is greater than fifteen percent (15%).

For all of the foregoing reasons, Petitioners respectfully request that the Board approve the
proposed transaction without the conditions recommended by Rate Counsel,

Very truly yours,

ol Service List (w/encl., by electronic mail)

{. .. continued)

thereol with respect to pension benefits previousty enjoyed. whether vested or contingent,
the board shall not grant its approval unless the public utility seeking the board’s approval
tor such sale, lease, or other disposition assumes such responsibility as will be sufficient
to provide that all such obligations to employees will be satisfied as they become due.

? See Order Approving Stipulution of Settlement, Petition of Time Warner Cable, er al., Docket No. CM 15070770,
March 31, 2016, at 11. We note that the Board has previously recognized that merging companies should be given
flexibility to realize merger benefits. See Order of Approvel, UM/O Joint Petition of Verizon Communications
Inc. and MCI, Inc. for Approval of Merger, BPU Docket No. TMOS030189, Aprif 12, 2006. at 44 (*“the imposition
of employment quotas on a company must be balanced with the possibility of negating the very merger benefits
that will, in the long-term, improve employment in New Jersey.”}
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